
 

                                                                         Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 
 

 
SURREY POLICE BOARD 

    Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

 
Venue:  Virtual 
Date:      September 28, 2021 
Time:      4:00 PM 

 
 

 
 

ITEM 
 

PRESENTER  

A. CALL TO ORDER 
  

Chair McCallum 
 

 

The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, traditional, and unceded territories 
of the Coast Salish Peoples. 
 
B. ADOPTIONS 
 
1. Adoption of the Agenda  – September 28, 2021 
 
2. Adoption of Minutes – July 20, 2021 
 

 
 

Chair McCallum 
 

Chair McCallum 
 

 
 
 

C. DELEGATIONS 
 
 1. No Delegations. 

 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 

D. REPORTS 
 
 CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS 
 
 1. Surrey Police Union 
  Report No. 2021-R021 – For Information 
 
 2. SPS Officer Training – Conversion Course and Mandatory Training 
  Report No. 2021-R022 – For Information 
 
 3. Hiring and Diversity Metrics 
  Report No. 2021-R023 – For Information 
 
 4. Order of Merit 
  Report No. 2021-R024 – For Information 
 
 5. IACP Top 40 under 40 Award Recipients 
  Report No. 2021-R025 – For Information 
 
 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 1. Budget Update Year to  Date Expenditures (One-time and  
  Operational) 
  Report No.  2021-FIN018 – For Information 
  (Presentation) 

 
 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Elizabeth Model 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 45



Surrey Police Board – Regular Agenda  

 

                                                                         Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

 

 
  GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

1. Provincial Policing Standards on the Promotion of Unbiased  
  Policing 
  Report No.  2021-GOV013 – For Information 

  

 
 
 

Chief Lipinski 

E. INFORMATION 
 

1. Letter from Canadian Police and Peace Officers Memorial Inc. –  
2021 Memorial Application – Constable George McDonald 

 
2. Letter from OPCC – Service or Policy Complaint 
 

 

  
 

Chief Lipinski 
 
 

Melissa Granum 
 
 

 
 
 
 

F. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

No correspondence.  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 No new business. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

H. NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board will be held on  
 October 26, 2021. 
 

 
 

Chair McCallum 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION 
 
It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public 
pursuant to Section 69 (2) (a), (c), and (d) of the Police Act, which states: 
 
(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or 

hearing held by it, a board or committee may order that the portion of the 
meeting during which the matter will arise be held in private: 

 
(a) a matter concerning public security, the disclosure of which could 

reasonably be expected to seriously impair effective policing or 
law enforcement; 

(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour 
management relations, layoffs or another personnel matter; 

(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or 
she be allowed to give in private to the board or committee. 

 
 

 
 

Chair McCallum 

 
 
 

J. ADJOURNMENT Chair McCallum  
 

Page 2 of 45



                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 1 

 
SURREY POLICE BOARD 

  Regular Meeting Minutes 

 
Venue:  Virtual 
Date:      July 20, 2021 
Time:      4:00 PM 
 

 
 
 

Present: 
Doug McCallum, Chair 
Cheney Cloke 
Elizabeth Model 
James Carwana 
Manav Gill 
Jessie Sunner 
 
 

Regrets: 
Meena Brisard 
Harley Chappell 
Michael LeSage, Deputy Chief 
 
 
Province: 
Mark Reder 
 
 

Staff Present: 
Norm Lipinski, Chief Constable 
Jennifer Hyland, Deputy Chief 
Todd Matsumoto, Deputy Chief 
Kyle Friesen, General Counsel 
Melissa Granum, Executive Director 
Marion Chow, Executive Assistant 
Forouzan Rezazadeh, IT Senior Project Mgr. 
Gayle Armstrong, Executive Service Manager 
Lisa Eason, Communications Manager 
Sukh Sidhu, S. Sgt. 
 

 
 
The Surrey Police Board recognizes that our work takes place on the ancestral, traditional, and unceded 
territories of the Coast Salish Peoples. 

 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 The July 20, 2021 Regular Board meeting was called to order at 4:00 PM. 
 
  
B. ADOPTIONS 
 
 1. Adoption of the Agenda  – July 20, 2021. 

 
 It was     Moved by James Carwana 

 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the agenda of the Surrey Police Board meeting of July 

20, 2021 be adopted. 
 
      Carried 
 
2. Adoption of Minutes – June 22, 2021 
 

 It was     Moved by Cheney Cloke 
      Seconded by Manav Gill 

 
 That the minutes of the Surrey Police Board meeting of 

June 22, 2021 be adopted. 
 

      Carried 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 45



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 2 

C. DELEGATIONS 
 
 No delegations. 

 
D. REPORTS 
 
 CHIEF CONSTABLE REPORTS 
 
 1. Chief Constable Updates– Standing Report 
  Report No. 2021-R018 – For Information 
 

 It was     Moved by James Carwana 
 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the Board receive the report for information. 

 
      Carried 

 
 2. SPS Sworn Officer Status 
  Report No. 2021-R019 – For Information 
 

 It was     Moved by Jessie Sunner 
 Seconded by James Carwana 
 
 That the Board receive the report for information. 

 
      Carried 

 
3. Systemic Racism in Policing in Canada:  Report of the Standing Committee on Public Safety and 

National Security 
  Report No. 2021-R020 – For Information 
 

 It was     Moved by Cheney Cloke 
 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the Board receive the report for information. 

 
      Carried 

 COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
  FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 
 1. One-time Policing Transition Project - Budget Update Year to Date Expenditures 
  Report No.  2021-FIN013 – For Information 
  (Presentation) 
 

 It was     Moved by James Carwana 
 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the Board receive the report for information. 

 
      Carried 

Page 4 of 45



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 3 

 
E. INFORMATION 
 

1. Service or Policy Complaint 
 
2. Canadian Association of Police Governance (CAPG) Annual General Meeting and Call for Nominations 
 
3. Surrey Police Board Reappointments 
 
4. OPCC Bulletin – Information Bulletin #19 – Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic on Police Complaints Process 

 
 It was     Moved by Cheney Cloke 

 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the Board receive the above noted for information. 

 
      Carried 

 
F. CORRESPONDENCE 
 

1. Letter from Director of Police Services – Approval of Sworn Officer Status 
 

 It was     Moved by Cheney Cloke 
 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the Board receive the above correspondence. 

 
      Carried 
 

G. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 No new business. 
 

H. NEXT MEETING 
 
 The next meeting of the Surrey Police Board will be held on September 28, 2021. 

 
I. MOTION TO HOLD A MEETING IN A CLOSED SESSION 
 

It is in order for the Board to pass a motion to close the meeting to the public pursuant to Section 69 (2) (a), 
(c), and (d) of the Police Act, which states: 
 
It was  Moved by James Carwana 

 Seconded by Manav Gill 
 
 That the Board close the meeting to the public pursuant to 

Section 69 (2) (a), (c) and (d) of the Police Act, which 
states:  

 
(2) if it believes that any of the following matters will arise in a meeting or hearing held by it, a board or 

committee may order that the portion of the meeting during which the matter will arise be held in 
private: 

Page 5 of 45



Surrey Police Board – Regular Minutes  

 

                                                                        Accountability through Civilian Oversight Page 4 

 
(a) a matter concerning public security, the disclosure of which could reasonably be expected to 

seriously impair effective policing or law enforcement; 
(c) a matter concerning labour contract discussions, labour management relations, layoffs or 

another personnel matter; 
(d) a matter concerning information that a person has requested he or she be allowed to give in 

private to the board or committee. 
 
 Carried  

 
J.   ADJOURNMENT 
 

It was      Moved by James Carwana 
 Seconded by Jessie Sunner 
 
 That the July 20, 2021 Regular Board meeting be 

adjourned. 
 

 Carried  
 
 The Surrey Police Board regular meeting adjourned at 4:19 PM. 
 

 
 
 

 
Certified correct: 
 
 
 
  ________________________________________   ___________________________________  
  Marion Chow, Executive Assistant    Doug McCallum, Chair 
 
 

Page 6 of 45



 
 

 
 

 
 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: September 21, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-R021  

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: Surrey Police Union 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Police organizations across British Columbia and Canada have unions that represent sworn members from 
the ranks of Constable to Staff Sergeant.  The unions act as an intermediary between its members and the 
employer and negotiate in developing a collective agreement.  As a newly formed police service the Surrey 
Police Service (“SPS”) did not have an existing union in place to represent sworn members.   
 
DISCUSSION 

On July 30th, 2021 the Labour Relations Board certified the Surrey Police Union (“SPU”).  With a 100% voting 
participation all members voted in favour of forming the SPU.  The SPU also received membership approval 
and are affiliating with the British Columbia Police Association and Canadian Police Association. 
 
There is an interim elected union executive board, and they will represent SPU members interests and 
actively pursue positive change by: 
 

- negotiating and administering collective agreements 
- ensuring compliance with Section 12 of the BC Labour Code which requires member representation 

not be arbitrary, discriminatory or in bad faith 
- assisting in Police Act matters in relation to discipline regulations as they are of concern to the 

membership 
- advising members with respect to Worksafe and Employment Standards Act matters 
- administering private group benefits coverage as determined by the membership 
- dealing with other relevant membership and professional matters consistent with the state of 

employment of the membership 
 
  

Page 7 of 45



2 
 

CONCLUSION 

The certification of the SPU is a fundamental step in the ongoing build of the SPS and will assist in providing 
the best in public safety for the citizens of Surrey, and a supportive and healthy working environment for our 
police officers. 

The above matters are for the Board's awareness and information.  

 
 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 
 

Page 8 of 45



 
 

 
 

 
 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: September 21, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-R022  

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: SPS Officer Training – Conversion Course and Mandatory Training  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The SPS Training Section have developed a six-week onboarding course for new officers that will provide 
training on SPS policies and requirements, in addition to provincially required mandatory training as per the 
BC Provincial Policing Standards.  The six-week conversion course will be provided to all SPS officers being 
deployed into the Municipal Police Unit beginning in October 2021.  The first delivery of this course 
commenced on September 7, 2021.  
 
DISCUSSION 

The six-week conversion course is designed to provide new officers with the skills, knowledge and abilities 
expected by SPS, regardless of what agency they were previously employed by.  Much police training in BC is 
standardized, however, this training will provide customized instruction of SPS policies, culture and 
expectations. The syllabus has been carefully planned to incorporate hands-on instruction in operational 
skills, classroom training and on-line training in the most efficient ways.  Some examples from the syllabus: 

• Cultural Awareness and Understanding our Communities: 
o eg: South Asian, Indigenous, LGBTQ+, Refugees, Homeless 

• Trauma Informed Practices 
• Crisis Intervention and De-escalation 
• Restorative Justice and Community Corrections 
• Surrey Gang Landscape 
• High Risk Investigations, eg: Missing Persons, Intimate Partner Violence 
• Use of Force – skills training and qualifications 
• Police Stops (Street Checks) 

 

Page 9 of 45



2 
 
 

CONCLUSION 

SPS has purposefully hired subject matter experts in the design and delivery of police training.  The expertise 
and professionalism these officers bring will ensure that the six-week Conversion Course will provide new SPS 
officers with the skills and abilities to successfully execute our initial deployments.  

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 

Page 10 of 45



REGULAR 
REPORT DATE: September 21, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-R023 

TO: Surrey Police Board 

FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 

SUBJECT: Hiring and Diversity Metrics 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 

DISCUSSION 

Hiring 
SPS welcomed its 100th employee on September 7, 2021.  This was a significant day for SPS, as 25 new 
officers joined the organization, including a constable who was the 100th person to sign into the SPS ledger. 
This represents the largest single-day addition of staff for SPS.  These officers will join their colleagues in 
advancing the transition of policing in the City of Surrey. 

Over the next several years, SPS will be hiring over 800 police officers.  To align recruitment efforts with 
SPS’s phased deployment into police operations, police personnel will be hired in phases. This fall SPS will be 
hiring both experienced police officers and new recruits. Appendix I provides an overview of what work 
current officers are fulfilling in areas of organizational support and readying prior to deployment.  

Diversity 
Our Recruiting Unit is striving to make the composition of the SPS parallel the diversity that exists in the city 
of Surrey.  These numbers are apparent in our most recent statistics.  

SPS believes it is important for the public and potential applicants to know about the organization and 
people that have chosen to work at SPS. Current statistics related to the gender, visible minority and 
Indigenous inclusion percentages in our organization are represented in the following table. 

Page 11 of 45



2 
 
 

SPS 
MANAGEMENT   %       % 

MALE 15 65.22% NON    14 60.87% 

FEMALE 8 34.78% 
VISIBLE 
MINORITY   5 21.74% 

      INDIGENOUS   4 17.39% 
  TOTAL 23 100.00%     23 100.00% 
SPS POLICE   %       % 
MALE 79 77.45% NON    55 53.92% 

FEMALE 23 22.55% 
VISIBLE 
MINORITY   40 39.22% 

      INDIGENOUS   7 6.86% 
  TOTAL 102 100.00%     102 100.00% 
SPS TOTAL   %       % 
MALE 81 68.64% NON    68 57.63% 

FEMALE 37 31.36% 
VISIBLE 
MINORITY   43 36.44% 

   INDIGENOUS   7 5.93% 
  TOTAL 118 100.00%     118 100.00% 

 
 
*This table reflects hiring to September 8, 2021. 

CONCLUSION 

As one of the core principles of SPS culture and values, we will continue to strive for diversity in recruiting 
and hiring practices as we continue to meet our hiring targets. Our goal is to achieve organizational diversity 
that truly reflects the community as we work toward becoming the police of jurisdiction for the City of 
Surrey.  

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 
 
Appendix I – SPS Staffing Breakdown, 2021-09-07 
Appendix II – SPS Hiring Metrics, September 2021 
 

Page 12 of 45



 
 

Appendix I 
 
 

SPS STAFF BREAKDOWN AS OF 2021-09-07 
SWORN OFFICERS 

BUREAUS 
 

Sworn Officers Major Functions/Tasks 

OFFICE OF THE CHIEF 
CONSTABLE 
 

3  

SUPPORT SERVICES BUREAU 
 

24 Operational Skills, Leadership Development, 
Tri-lateral Coordination (HR, Equipment, 
facilities), HR, PSU, Facilities and Equipment 
procurement/coordination, Staffing and 
budget planning, civilian transition, HR policy 
and procedure development, Security 
Clearances, promotion process 
development, onboarding development and 
delivery.  

INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES 
BUREAU 
 

5 Investigative policy and procedure 
development, Major Case Management 
planning, File review planning.  

COMMUNITY POLICING 
BUREAU 
 

11 Operational deployment planning (Tri-
Lateral), Community Consultations, SPS 
Policy development, uniform procurement 
and coordination, Occupational Health and 
Safety development and organization. Some 
staff seconded to Recruiting Unit and TRU. 

TRU 
 

28 Ongoing Recruiting, Interviewing and 
candidate processing.  

ONBOARD TRAINING 28 Cohort 1 for Fall Deployment 
TOTAL 
 

99  

 
 
 
 

Page 13 of 45



 
 

Appendix II 
 

 

Page 14 of 45



 
 

 
 

 
 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: September 21, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-R024  

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: Order of Merit 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Order of Merit of the Police Forces is an honour for merit that was established in October 2000. 
Appointment to the order recognizes conspicuous merit and exceptional service displayed by officers or 
civilians of Canadian Police Services.  The Order of Merit is awarded by the Monarch of Canada and the focus 
is on contributions to policing, community development and fostering relationships among police forces and 
the community.   The Order of Merit is awarded based on contributions made over an individual’s career and 
not on a single incident or achievement.1 
 
DISCUSSION 

On July 8th, 2021 Staff Sergeant Rick Stewart (“S/Sgt Stewart”), a 28 year member and previously of the 
Abbotsford Police Department was awarded the Order of Merit. S/Sgt Stewart was nominated by Retired 
Chief Constable Bob Rich of the Abbotsford Police Department (“APD”) and awarded the Order for his 
dedicated career towards the betterment of the organization, its membership, the citizens of Abbotsford 
and British Columbia, going above and beyond as a matter of practice. S/Sgt Stewart was a minor hockey 
volunteer; a member of the Abbotsford Police Union Executive; and created the Abbotsford Police 
Members’ Benevolent Association through which he organized a charity golf tournament. S/Sgt. Stewart was 
appointed as the first Departmental Sergeant Major for the APD and chaired both the steering and 
organizing committees for the BC Law Enforcement Memorial (BCLEM); he was the driving force in 
restructuring the BCLEM to include additional events such as a golf tournament and bike ride. In late 2017 
he chaired the organizing committee for the Regimental funeral for Cst. John Davidson.  He was appointed 
to the board of directors of the BC Law Enforcement Memorial Foundation and was elected to the Board of 
Directors for the Abbotsford Police Foundation.  Highlights from S/Sgt Stewart’s policing duties include his 
creation of the APD’s Crime Reduction Unit and while with the Provincial Auto Theft Unit he introduced the 
first automatic licence plate recognition technology as an enforcement tool in Canada. 

 
1 Canadian Association of Chiefs of Police [website], https://www.cacp.ca/order-of-merit.html (accessed 16 August 2021). 

Page 15 of 45

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Award
https://www.cacp.ca/order-of-merit.html


2 
 
 
 

CONCLUSION 

Since 1995 S/Sgt Stewart contributed to the positive morale and general betterment of the APD and now the 
Surrey Police Service is proud to have S/Sgt Stewart as of a member of our team. 

The above matters are for the Board's awareness and information.  

 
 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 
 

Page 16 of 45



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
REGULAR 

REPORT DATE: September 21, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-R025 

 
 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board   
 
FROM: Chief Constable  FILE: 60550-20-03 
 
SUBJECT: IACP Top 40 Under 40 Award Recipients 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Chief Constable recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
SPS is proud to acknowledge two employees as recipients of the International Association of Chiefs of Police 
(IACP) 2021 Top 40 Under 40 Award.  The IACP Top 40 Under 40 award program is designed to recognize 40 
law enforcement professionals under the age of 40 from around the world that demonstrate leadership and 
exemplify commitment to their profession.  The 2021 40 Under 40 awardees represent the top rising leaders 
from around the globe, exemplifying leadership, dedication, and service to their communities and the law 
enforcement profession. 
 
DISCUSSION 

The accomplishments and achievements of these two outstanding SPS officers are summarized below (from 
the IACP website):   

Constable Jeremy Pearce 
 
CONSTABLE JEREMY PEARCE demonstrates leadership and maturity far beyond his age.  His charismatic, 
community- oriented approach has developed a strong followership of police officers of all ranks.  In fact, his 
affinity for community policing reaches far beyond his [previous] employment as a Delta Police Department 
(DPD) constable. Prior to joining the DPD, Cst. Pearce established a community policing program called 
Transit Watch with the Metro Vancouver Transit Police, which increased transit police presence and rider 
safety. 
 
In his [former] role as district liaison officer, Cst. Pearce enhanced the DPD’s community policing and crime 
prevention programs while building strong relationships with community stakeholders. Cst. Pearce leads a 
diverse group of more than 120 volunteers and has successfully mentored many of these volunteers toward 

Page 17 of 45



2 
 
 
a career in policing.  He has volunteered thousands of hours as a Big Brother, a rider with Cops for Cancer, 
and a representative and coach for the Special Olympics.  Additionally, Cst. Pearce introduced a Club Fit 
program, pairing volunteers and high school leaders with Special Olympics athletes, as well as Active 
Alliance, a weekly drop-in sports and mentorship program at a local high school. 
 
He also has an affinity for creative community policing approaches.  After a significant crime spree in the 
industrial area, he developed a new, unique multifaceted approach utilizing a team of over 100 community 
members, reducing overall crime by 39 percent and providing the local community members an opportunity 
to participate in community policing initiatives.  Among other initiatives, he’s also established a Building 
Safer Communities program that helped reduce crime and disorder in the growing multi-unit housing 
population. 
 
Staff Sergeant Raj Mander 
 
STAFF SERGEANT RAJ MANDER started his career with the Vancouver Police Department (VPD) in 2006 and 
quickly rose to the rank of sergeant within his first 10 years. He served in various sections of the department 
within the Operations and Investigations Divisions at all three ranks. In 2021, SSgt Mander accepted a 
position with the newly formed Surrey Police Service. 
 
His passion for policing embodied the VPD mantra, “Beyond the Call” and evidence of this devotion was 
displayed in 2019, when the VPD faced significantly high call volumes across the city.  SSgt Mander led a 
project team that redeveloped the VPD’s online crime reporting tool.  This resulted in an eight-fold increase 
to online reporting, changes to front line prioritization of calls, and an 85 percent reduction of holding calls 
for service. 
 
SSgt Mander takes an active role in the development of his peers.  He instructed in six different training 
courses during his last year with the VPD.  He also developed and implemented nearly two dozen community 
sport programs during his career, involving over 2,000 youth. 
 
He is the recipient of 13 different awards, citations, and commendations.  He holds a Bachelor of Arts from 
Simon Fraser University and a Master of Business Administration from the University of British Columbia. 
SSgt Mander’s continued passion for the community and public safety will play a critical role at his new 
agency in building a modern, progressive, community-based police service for the residents of Surrey, British 
Columbia. 
 
2021 IACP 40 Under 40 Awardees (theiacp.org) 

CONCLUSION 

SPS is very proud that these two outstanding officers have chosen to further their careers by joining SPS. We 
look forward to supporting them as they continue to advance their valued work and commitment to 
community safety and well-being in Surrey.  

 
Norm Lipinski, OOM, LLB, MBA 
Chief Constable 
 

Page 18 of 45

https://www.theiacp.org/2021-iacp-40-under-40-awardees


 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR 
 
 
 

REPORT DATE: September 21,2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-FIN018 

 
 
TO: Surrey Police Board   
 
FROM: Finance Committee  FILE: 60540-20-04 
  
SUBJECT: Budget Update Year to Date Expenditures 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Finance Committee recommends that the Surrey Police Board (the "Board") receive this report for 
information. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
This report presents a summary of the 2021 year-to-date expenditures incurred up to the period ended 
July 31st, 2021. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Five-Year Financial Plan 2021 – 2025 endorsed by Council in December 2020 provided budget allocation 
for policing services which includes one time establishment costs for SPS and general annual operating 
funding. 
 
The 2021 operating budget (per the 2021 – 2025 Financial Plan) is presented in the following table: 
 

 

For 2021, SPS was allocated operating budget of $61.1M, which was based on the deployment of 242 sworn 
members.  At the time that the budget was prepared and presented to Council, it was unknown how much 
of the policing services would be provided by the RCMP and how much would be provided by SPS when it is 
approved for operations by the Province.  As such, the City of Surrey estimated a 75/25 split, assuming 75% 
would be provided by the RCMP, and 25% by SPS. The exact proportion of the funding was to be determined 
during the year based on the final SPS deployment model approved by the SPTTC.  

Page 19 of 45



2 
 
 
In the addition to the operating budget, the total budget of $63.7M proposed for the capital/one-time 
transition to SPS is presented in the following table: 

 
 
The one-time expenditures for the 2020 year were budgeted at $25.2M, of which $20.6M was not expended 
and carried forward into the 2021 fiscal year.  The one-time expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year were 
budgeted at $23.1M.  The total of $43.7M is the available one-time budget for the current year.   
 
The SPS and the City of Surrey are working collaboratively with both the Province of BC and the Government 
of Canada on the transition.  The specific timing of the implementation of SPS is dependent on decisions by 
all three levels of government which impacts the timing of expenditures.  
 
DISCUSSION 

SPS Operations  

As of July 31st, 2021, year-to-date expenditures are $5.3M favourable compared to budget.  The SPS has 
incurred a total of $12.0M of operating expenditures compared to budgeted $17.3M as presented in the 
table below: 

 
* Includes ongoing contribution to Lower Mainland Integrated Teams with July YTD Budget of $9.2M, July YTD Actual of $9.4M, and 
2021 Annual Budget of $15.8M. 
 
As of July 31st, 2021, SPS has incurred $2.6M in total expenditures (excluding the ongoing contribution to 
Lower Mainland Integrated Teams), of which $2.5M is for Salaries and Benefits and $0.1M in Other 
Expenditures. Appendix I provides the breakdown by division of the year-to-date expenditures.   
 
On July 31st, 2021, there were a total of 76 SPS employees (63 sworn members and 13 civilian staff).  Of 
these employees, 28 employees were part of there the recruitment unit and the salaries of these employees 
are allocated to the One-time Policing Transitional Project as establishment costs.  
 
Included in SPS Operations, are Salaries and Benefits of $2.5M for 48 employees (37 sworn members and 11 
civilian staff).  These employees are engaged in the following initiatives:   

- Development of policies and procedures  
- Development of training programs, including operational and leadership skills development 
- Procurement (equipment, uniforms, firearms, etc.) 
- Tri-lateral coordination (human resources, asset transfer, facilities, etc.)  
- Occupational health and safety development and organization 

Page 20 of 45



3 
 
 

- Community engagement 
- Staffing coordination and budget planning 

 
Other Expenditures (excluding Lower Mainland Integrated Teams) of $0.1M comprise primarily of $23k of 
relocation costs, $22k of training, $22k of supplies, and $17k of legal. SPS presents a favourable variance of 
$5.3M year-to-date.  
 
Police Transitional One-Time Funding 

The transitional one-time expenditures for 2021 are summarized in the table below: 

 
** Budget Available includes 2020 unused budget of $20.6M carried forward to 2021. 
 
Appendix II presents the details on the spending related to the establishment of the SPS. The unspent 
$20.6M carried forward from 2020 has been reallocated for 2021 and future years based on the projects and 
priorities pertaining to the SPS establishment.  Appendix II presents the total expenditures of $8.6M incurred 
year-to-date July 31st, 2021.  As in 2020, a year-to-date expenditures report will be provided to the Finance 
Committee monthly.  The details of the budget allocations and corresponding expenditures are as follow: 
 

• Legal includes expenditures for matters pertaining to collective bargaining, human resources, 
trademarks, and other establishment legal costs.  Also, included in Legal is the cost of in-house legal 
counsel seconded from the City of Surrey.  The year-to-date spend is $214k with remaining budget 
available of $271k. 

• Strategy and Policy includes consulting, research, and policy advice. A great deal of groundwork was 
done in 2020 and $8k has been spent as of the end of July 2021. The total budget available is $325k. 

• Financial Services includes external financial services advisors and accounting advice to support the 
establishment of SPS. The year-to-date spend is $206k with remaining budget available of $358k. 

• Communications and Marketing includes consultants managing public relations required to support 
the establishment of SPS. Also, included is the City of Surrey staff to support the SPS websites, social 
media and communications activities with graphic design and videography. The year-to-date spend 
is $402k with remaining budget available of $209k. 

• Human Resources includes expenditures for consultants and City of Surrey seconded staff directly 
involved with the HR matters. The year-to-date spend is $124k with remaining budget available of 
$423k. 

• Recruitment, Assessment, and Training includes SPS employees hired to support surge recruiting for 
SPS. As of July 31st, 2021, the recruitment unit includes salaries for 28 SPS employees (26 sworn 
members and 2 civilian employees).  Also, included are expenditures related to testing and 
assessment of candidates and training for the new hires. The year-to-date spend is $1.2M, of which 
salaries for the 28 SPS employees are $832k. As of July 31, 2021, there is $9.6M remaining budget 
available. 

Page 21 of 45



4 
 
 

• Infrastructure Operating includes fleet maintenance and management. Also, included is the City of 
Surrey seconded staff managing infrastructure. The year-to-date spend is $128k with remaining 
budget available of $543k. 

• Information Technology Operating includes maintenance of IT operating systems. Also, included is 
the City of Surrey seconded staff for IT project management. The year-to-date spend is $248k with 
remaining budget available of $4.3M. 

• Information Technology Capital includes expenditures for building the data centre, dispatch systems, 
administrative systems, and telecommunication assets. The year-to-date spend is $5.9M with 
remaining budget available of $9.7M. 

• Fleet Capital includes purchase of new vehicles.  The year-to-date spend is $70k with remaining 
budget available of $1.0M. 

• Armoury and Outfit includes expenditures for guns, uniforms, and personal issue kit. No amount has 
been spent as of the end of July 2021. The total budget available for Armoury and Outfit Capital is 
$7.8M. 

• Facilities Capital includes retrofit costs for SPS to assume occupancy of facilities currently owned or 
leased by the City and occupied by RCMP. The year-to-date spend is $107k with remaining budget 
available of $493k.   

As of July 31st, 2021, SPS has incurred $8.6M in total expenditures and the project remains underspent 
compared to the available budget.  The projected spending for 2021 fiscal year will be approximately 
$29.5M.  Areas of significant expected spending include Information Technology and Recruitment, 
Assessment and Training. By the end of 2021, SPS expects to carry forward $14.2M to 2022 and future years. 

CONCLUSION 

Expenditures to date supporting the SPS Operations and the One-time Policing Transition Project have been 
managed in accordance with the Council-adopted 2021-2025 Financial Plan.  With this report, the Board is 
following through on a commitment to monthly public reporting on expenditures.  Implementation of the 
SPS is well underway.  Each project domain is moving forward.  Expenditures for the period ended July 31st, 
2021 were within the available budget for 2021. 

 
 
Elizabeth Model 
Chair, Finance Committee 
 
Appendix I  Surrey Police Service Operations - Year-to-Date Expenditures – July 31, 2021 
Appendix II  5 Year Policing Transition Project - Year-to-Date Budget Reconciliation – July 31, 2021 
 
 
 

Page 22 of 45



 
 

APPENDIX I  
 

 

Page 23 of 45



 
 

 
APPENDIX II 

  
 

 

Page 24 of 45



REGULAR 
REPORT DATE: September 22, 2021 

BOARD MEETING DATE: September 28, 2021 

BOARD REPORT # 2021-GOV013 

TO: Surrey Police Board 

FROM: Governance Committee FILE: 60540-20-03 

SUBJECT: Provincial Policing Standards on the Promotion of Unbiased Policing 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Governance Committee recommends that the Surrey Police Board receive this report for 
information.  

SUMMARY 

Pursuant to Article 40.1 (a.1) of the Police Act, the Director of Police Services may establish Standards 
that are binding on police agencies in BC.  On August 19, 2021, the Director communicated the approval 
of new standards related to the promotion of unbiased policing.  These standards will require that police 
agencies and police boards have policies and procedures on specific matters and to take specific actions 
to ensure that policing services are delivered equitably, and in a manner that is responsive to the needs 
and realities of racialized or otherwise marginalized persons and communities.  

DISCUSSION 

An overview of the new British Columbia Provincial Policing Standards (BCPPS): 

BCPPS 6.1.1 Promoting Unbiased Policing 
• Communicate duty to promote equitable policing without discrimination to all employees of the

police force.
• Commitment and expectation that all employees of the police force will provide services in a

culturally safe, responsive, and trauma-informed manner.
• Police officers provide information and referral to services to support access to justice, including

referrals to victim services in a culturally appropriate manner, and access to interpreters or
translation services.

• Policies to guide a police board’s response to Service and Policy Complaints, requiring consideration
of whether the complaint includes allegations of discriminatory policies or practices.

Page 25 of 45



2 
 

 
BCPPS 6.1.2 Community Engagement 
• Maintaining a community relations function to liaise with community representatives reflective of 

the demographic makeup of the community.  
• Seek community input on priorities and objectives for policing and law enforcement from a broad 

spectrum of the community served. 
• Conducting a survey of citizen satisfaction at least once every three years. 

 
BCPPS 6.1.3 Promoting Diversity within the Police Force 
• Recruitment and promotion policies and practices to include strategies to increase and maintain 

diversity in the police force, including recruitment materials that depict gender equity and minority 
representation; targeted recruitment activities to attract under-represented groups; and monitoring 
diversity within the police force in relation to the area served. 

• Policies and processes to prohibit bullying and any form of harassment in the workplace. 
 
BCPPS 3.2.5 Training to Promote Equitable and Unbiased Policing 
• All front-line police officers and front-line supervisors to have completed BC Fair and Impartial 

Policing Training or a provincially approved equivalent training course, by no later than July 30, 
2024.  

 
BCPPS 3.2.6 Training to Enhance Service Delivery to Vulnerable Communities  
• All police officers to have completed Indigenous cultural safety training by no later than July 30, 

2024. 
• All front-line police officers and front-line supervisors to have completed trauma-informed practice 

training by no later than July 30, 2024. There is also a requirement to update this training at least 
every three years for those officers and supervisors in specialized roles responsible for investigations 
involving vulnerable witnesses or victims. 

• All front-line police officers and front-line supervisors to have completed Evidence-based, Risk-
focused Intimate Partner Violence Investigations training by no later than December 31, 2022, and 
refresh this training every five years. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 
SPS Training and Policy Development Teams have been informed of the new standards and are working 
to confirm that our policies and practices meet or exceed the BCPPS. Many of these requirements are 
already addressed in recently approved policies.  Future policies and training will be developed using 
these standards as a foundation from which we can build.  

 
Harley Chappell 
Chair, Governance Committee 
 
Appendix I – Rideout BCPPS Unbiased Policing 
Appendix II- Principles for BC Provincial Policing Standards 
Appendix III- Approved BC Provincial Policing Standards 
Page 26 of 45



Page 27 of 45



Page 28 of 45



Page 29 of 45



BRITISH 
COLUMBIA 

Appendix Il 

Guiding Principles Related to Provincial Policing Standards: 

BCPPS 6.1 Community Partnerships & Equitable Policing 
Page 1 of 3 

BCPPS 3.2.5 Training to promote equitable and unbiased policing 

BCPPS 3.2.6 Training to enhance service delivery to vulnerable communities 

Police agencies, governments and communities throughout British Columbia share a commitment to 
ensuring policing is delivered in an equitable manner throughout the province. Work is occurring at all 

levels of government to recognize and address inequities, protect rights, and improve responsiveness of 

the criminal justice system for women affected by violence, Black, Indigenous and Persons of Colour, 

and marginalized communities. These standards are a component of broader efforts to promote 

unbiased policing and access to justice in BC. 

These standards respond to the issues raised in 
many reports, inquiries, and by community-led 

advocacy. The final report of the Missing 

Women Commission of Inquiry (MWCI), 
recommended standards to promote equality in 
the delivery of policing services, increase 

responsiveness to the needs of vulnerable 

persons, and enhance governance of policing. 

Since then, additional reports have documented 

the experiences of socially and/or racially 

marginalized communities, including Indigenous 

peoples, within the justice system. Examples 
include related decisions from human rights 

tribunals, the Truth and Reconciliation 

Commission and the National Inquiry into 

Missing and Murdered Indigenous Women and 

Girls. These proceedings have produced 

recommendations and are driving further work 

in BC aimed at improving the experience of 
Indigenous peoples within the justice system, 

such as the Declaration of the Rights of 

Indigenous Peoples Act, and the BC First Nations 

Justice Strategy. 

The Missing Women Commission of Inquiry 

Between 1997 and 2002, numerous women were 
reported missing from Vancouver's Downtown East side, 
by friends and families who feared for the women's 
safety. Robert Pickton was arrested in 2002 and 
convicted of six counts of second-degree murder and 
sentenced to life in prison in December 2007. Twenty 
additional murder charges were stayed by the Crown 
Counsel in August 2010. 

In 2010, in response to the horrific events and criticism 
surrounding the police investigations, the Province 
established the Missing Women Commission of Inquiry.

Forsaken, The Report of the Missing Women Commission 

of!nguiry was released in 2012 and included 63 
recommendations, many of which related to policing. 

The Commission found that systemic bias contributed to 
police effectively under-prioritizing and under
investigating reports of missing women, and that this 
was a manifestation of the broader patterns of systemic 
discrimination within society. Specifically, Commissioner 
Oppal found that negative stereotyping about women 
involved in survival sex work, many of whom were 
Indigenous women, existed within the exercise of 
individual discretion and collective decision-making by 
police during the investigations of their disappearances. 

Further, efforts to reform and modernize policing in BC are ongoing. In 2020, the Legislative Assembly of 
British Columbia appointed the Special Committee on Reforming the Police Act to conduct a broad 

inquiry into policing, including examining the role of police with respect to complex social issues; 

examining the scope of systemic racism within policing in BC; and ensuring consistency of a modernized 
Police Act with the United Nations Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous Peoples. Other projects 
related to unbiased policing including regarding gender equity and anti-racism will inform further 

advances to these standards moving forward. 

Page 30 of 45



Page 31 of 45



Page 32 of 45



BRITISH 
COLUMBIA 

PROVINCIAL POLICING STANDARDS 

--------- ---

Section 6.0 - Promotion of Unbiased Policing 

Sub Section 6.1- Community Partnerships and 

Equitable Policing Effective: July 30, 2023 

f----- ----�-----�--- - - - ----1 Revised: n/a

Subject 6.1.1- Promoting Unbiased Policing 

Definitions 

Appendix III 

Page 1 of 5 

"Police officer" - a constable appointed under the Police Act or an enforcement officer 

appoin'ted under s. 18.1 of the Police Act.

Standards 

Duty to promote equitable policing 

The Board, or the Commissioner must ensure that: 

(1) The duty of all employees to deliver services impartially and equitably, in a manner that

upholds human rights, and without discrimination based on race, national or ethnic origin,

colour, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, marital status, family status, disability, gender

identity and expression, political beliefs, types of employment, economic or social standing

is communicated to all employees of the police force.

(2) The police force's commitment and expectation that all employees will provide services in

a culturally safe, responsive, and trauma-informed manner is communicated to all

employees of the police force.

Policy framework to support equitable policing 

The Board, or the Commissioner must ensure that: 

(3) The process of establishing, amending, or routinely reviewing the policies and procedures

of the police force includes analysis or consideration of whether:

(a) the policy or procedure promotes equitable and impartial service delivery and

public trust and confidence in the police force, and

(b) whether individuals or groups may be disproportionately impacted by the policy

or procedure (e.g., Gender-Based Analysis Plus).

(4) The persons responsible for the analyses described in Standard (3) above are provided with

resources and information to assist in the analysis.

Page 33 of 45



Page 34 of 45



Page 35 of 45



Page 36 of 45



Page 37 of 45



Page 38 of 45



Page 39 of 45



Page 40 of 45



Page 41 of 45



Page 42 of 45



Page 43 of 45



   
THEY ARE OUR HEROES.  WE SHALL NOT FORGET THEM. 

CE SONT NOS HÉROS.  NOUS NE LES OUBLIERONS JAMAIS. 
 

Canadian Police and Peace Officers Memorial Inc./La Commémoration des policiers et agents de la paix canadiens inc. 

141, rue Catherine Street, Ottawa, Ontario, K2P 1C3, bouchers@ottawapolice.ca  

 

Canadian Association of 

Chiefs of Police 

Association canadienne des 

chefs de police   

Canadian Peace Officers’ 

Memorial Association 

Association canadienne 

commémorative des agents 

 de la paix 

 

 

August 16, 2021 

 
Chief Constable Norm Lipinski 
Surrey Police Service 
13450 104th Avenue 
Surrey, BC.  V3T 1V8 
 
RE: 2021 Memorial Application – Constable George McDonald 

 

The Memorial Board of Directors met and approved the application for Constable George McDonald for inclusion 
for the Memorial Service.  He will be honoured and his name will be engraved on the Memorial Tablet as “GEORGE 
MCDONALD”.   He will be immortalized at the National Memorial Service next year, 2022. 

Due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Memorial Board of Directors and Committee do not believe we can safely hold a 
large-scale event under these circumstances.  Therefore, Constable McDonald will be honoured at the 2022 
Memorial Service, on Sunday, September 25, 2022, at 11:00 hours on Parliament Hill.  

Thanking you for your full understanding of this situation. 

Sincerely, 

 
Steve Boucher, M.O.M. 
Ottawa Police Service, Ceremonial Sergeant Major 
Canadian Police and Peace Officers Memorial Service, Coordinator 
bouchers@ottawapolice.ca  
Cell:  613-298-0007 
 
Cc:  S/Sgt. Rick Stewart. 
       Rick.stewart@surreypolice.ca  

Page 44 of 45

mailto:bouchers@ottawapolice.ca
mailto:Rick.stewart@surreypolice.ca


OFF I CE OF T HE 
POLICE COMP L A I NT 
CO M M I SS I ONER 

August 25, 2021 

His Worship Mayor Doug McCalhun 
Chair, Sun:ey Police Board 
13450 104 Ave 
Surrey, BC V3T 1 VS 

Dear Mayor McCallum, 

Re: Service or Policy Complaint of 

Integrity 
Independence 

Excellence 

OPCC File No. 2021-19656 

On June 28, 2021, the Office of the Police Complaint Commissioner received a copy of your 
concluding letter to __ , dated June 28, 2021. Your letter carefully detailed the steps 
taken with respect to the complaint submitted by--and provided reasons for your 
decision. 

As well, you advised--of. right to reques t a review of the matter by our office if■ 
disagreed with your decision. Our office subsequently received such a reques t from-- · Having had the opportunity to examine the Board 's decision, this office is satisfied with the 
outcome and w ill not be making any recommendations for fur ther investigation, study, courses 
of action or changes to service or policy respecting this par ticular matter. Accordingly, our file 
w ill now be closed. 

Tayja Lum 
Inves tigative Analyst 

cc: 

OPCC ID 1704 20170803 

Chief Constable Norm Lipinski, Sun:ey Police Service 

5th Floor, 947 Fort Street, PO Box 9895, St:n Prov Govt, Victoria, BC V8W 9T8 
P: 250.356.7458 I 1.877.999.8707 I www.opcc.bc.ca Page 45 of 45


	Agenda 2021 09 28
	Minutes 2021 07 20
	R021 - Surrey Police Union
	R022 - SPS Officer Training - Conversion Course and Mandatory Training
	R023 - Hiring and Diversity Metrics
	Appendix I - SPS Staffing Breakdown
	Appendix II - SPS Hiring Metrics
	R024 - Order of Merit
	R025 - IACP Top 40 under 40 Award Recipients
	FIN018 - Budget Update Year to Date Expenditures
	Appendix I - SPS Operations
	Appendix II - One-time Policing Transition Project - Year to Date Budget Reconciliation
	GOV013 - Provincial Policing Standards on the Promotion of Unbiased Policing
	Appendix I - Rideout BCPPS Unbiased Policing
	Appendix II - Principles for BC Provincial Policing Standards
	Appendix III - Approved BC Provincial Policing Standards
	Letter from Canadian Police and Peace Officers Memorial Inc.
	Letter from OPCC - Service or Policy Complaint



